


 
 

AGENDA 

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, December 12, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 

Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

B. OATH OF OFFICE ADMINISTERED TO DIRECTORS – Blaise Jackson, General Counsel 

 Karen “Kate” Schwartz-Frates 4-year term December 2018 to December 2022 

Jennifer Jeffries 4-year term December 2018 to December 2022 

Howard Salmon 4-year term December 2018 to December 2022 

 

C. OFFICERS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 C1. Nomination and Election of Officers of the Board  

  President (General Counsel – until Board president elected, who will then chair meeting) 

  Vice President 

  Secretary 

 C2. Appointment of the Treasurer (President) 

 C3. Committee Assignment(s) 

 

D. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
Pursuant  to the Brown Act, additions to the Agenda as posted are exceptional, and expressly limited to three specific 

situations, as set forth in Government Code 54954.2(b): (1) an “emergency” as determined by majority vote of the 

board; (2) a 2/3 vote of the board finding that an item requires immediate action – and the need for this action arose in 

time after the agenda was posted or (3) the item was continued from an earlier meeting (no more than 5 days earlier), 

at which time the item was validly posted on the agenda of the earlier meeting. 

 

E. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Opportunity for board members and citizens to speak on items of interest within subject matter jurisdiction of the 

District.  For the record, please state your name.  “Request to speak” cards should be filled out in advance and 

presented to the Board President or the recording secretary.  The Board has a policy limiting any speaker to not more 

than five minutes  

 

F. CONSENT ITEMS 

 F1. Approval of October 2018 Financial Statements 

 F2. Minutes of November 7, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 

 F3. Minutes of November 8, 2018 Special Board Meeting 

 F4. Minutes of November 14, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 

 F5. Minutes of November 16, 2018 Special Board Meeting 

 

 

Page 1 of 121



G. REPORTS 

G1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 

G2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee  

G3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee  

G4. Chief Executive Officer – Bobbi Palmer MBA MSW 

G5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 

 

 

H. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 

H1. Retention Items – Authorization to Destroy Outdated Records (Gov Code 34090, 

Per Board Resolution 393)** 

H2. Consideration of proposal from National Demographics Corporation/Election 

Transition. 

H3. Review bids for roof repairs for the Alvarado Street and Brandon Road and 

Wellness Center properties – Roy Moosa, Property Manager 

H4. Consideration of extension of support for extended hours for Med+ Urgent Care* 

H5. Consideration of extension of contracted services for accounting/bookkeeping 

H6. Review of staff salary increases  

H7. Update designation of individuals authorized to deposit or withdraw funds in LAIF 

account 

H8. Recommendation from accountant for amount transferred quarterly from LAIF 

account to Citibank account 

H9. Consideration of Centraforce 2019 bridge contract proposal. 

H10. Consideration of Resolution memorializing Board Officers and Setting Date, Time 

and Place for Regular Board Meetings 2019. 

 

I. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 

 I1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 

  I1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 

  I1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, January 2, 2:00-2:30pm, Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Health Under One Roof, Rm 2,1636 E. Mission Rd. Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee of the Whole meeting – 1st Wednesday, January 2, 

5:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd. 

Fallbrook 

• Woman of Wellness meeting – 1st Thursday, January 3, 6pm – Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Wellness Advisory Committee meeting – 2nd Wednesday, January 9, 5:00-

6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., 

Fallbrook 

• Board of Directors Workshop – Saturday, January 12, 8:00am – Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

Page 2 of 121



• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 

meeting – 3rd Wednesday, January 16, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Wellness 

Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

I2. Next Regular Board meeting – Wednesday, January 9, 6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness 

Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

J. CLOSED SESSION 

J1. Personnel Matters Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Annual Evaluation of 

Chief Executive Officer. 

J2. Conference with Legal Counsel Concerning Exposure to Litigation Per Government Code 

Section 54956.9(d)(2) – one case. 

 

 

K. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – Report of Action taken in Closed Session (if any). 

 

L. ADJOURNMENT 

 

NOTE: This agenda posted at the Fallbrook Regional Health District Administration Office on Friday, December 7, 2018. The 

American with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from participation in, or denied 

the benefits of District business.  If you need assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the District office 24 hours prior 

to the meeting at 760-731-9187. 

 

 

Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 3 of 121



Page 4 of 121



Page 5 of 121



Page 6 of 121



Page 7 of 121



Page 8 of 121



Page 9 of 121



Page 10 of 121



Page 11 of 121



Page 12 of 121



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

400. · District
402 · Property tax revenue 29,432 38,328 42,990 98,729 710,000 475,000 47,635 415,000 22,500 25,510 88,967 62,285 2,056,376
403 · Interest / Dividends 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,416 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,416 10,417 10,417 10,417 125,000

Total 400. · District 39,849 48,745 53,406 109,146 720,416 485,416 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,181,376

460 · Lease Income
460.01 · Med+ Urgent Care (formerly A+) 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total 460 · Lease Income 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 4,800 0 0 0 0 0 0 28,800

Total Income 44,649 53,545 58,206 113,946 725,216 490,216 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,210,176

Gross Profit 44,649 53,545 58,206 113,946 725,216 490,216 58,052 425,417 32,916 35,927 99,384 72,702 2,210,176

Expense
500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead

500.10 · Salaries 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 22,917 275,000
500.12 · Payroll Taxes 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 1,917 23,000
500.14 · W/C Insurance 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 126 1,507
500.15 · Employee Health & Welfare 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000
500.16 · Board Stipends 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 21,000
500.17 · Education & Conferences 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 1,542 18,500
500.18 · Dues & Subscriptions 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 1,167 14,000
500.19 · Insurance - General 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 1,581 18,975
500.20 · Independent Accounting Services 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 850 10,200
500.21 · Annual Independent Audit 0 8,850 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,850
500.23 · General Counsel 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000
500.25 · Office Expense

01 · Communications 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 304 3,650
02 · I.T. and Website services 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
03 · Refreshments 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500
04 · Office Expenses 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 1,308 15,700
05 · LAFCO Admin fees 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 114 1,367
06 · Independent Contract Services 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

Total 500.25 · Office Expense 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 7,851 94,217

500.27 · Depreciation 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 429 5,151
500.29 · Dist Promotions & Publications 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 3,188 38,250
500.32 · Consultant Fees 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 8,563 102,750
500.33 · Copier Lease 833 833 833 833 833 833 834 833 834 833 834 834 10,000
500.36 · Accrued Vacation & Sick Leave 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 0 0 2,500 10,000
500.40 · Video/AV Equipment 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
580.01 · General Election 0 0 16,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 16,500

Total 500 · Admin. Expenses & Overhead 58,129 66,979 77,129 58,129 58,129 60,629 58,130 58,129 60,630 58,129 58,130 60,630 732,900

570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road
570.02 · Gas & Electric 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 1,333 16,000
570.03 · Water 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
570.04 · Waste Management 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 83 1,000
570.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
570.07 · Custodial Services 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 500 6,000
570.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
570.25 · Office Expense

25.02 · I.T. & Website Services 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
25.04 · Office Expenses 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 12,000
25.06 · Independent Contract Services 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 3,750 45,000

Total 570.25 · Office Expense 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 60,000

570.29 · Dist. Promotions & Publications 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 10,000
570.32 · Consultant Fees 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 15,000

Total 570 · Mgmt./Maint. - E. Mission Road 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 10,667 128,000

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4Page 13 of 121



TOTAL
Jul 18 Aug 18 Sep 18 Oct 18 Nov 18 Dec 18 Jan 19 Feb 19 Mar 19 Apr 19 May 19 Jun 19 Jul '18 - Jun 19

590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road
590.01 · Property Manager 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 2,083 25,000
590.02 · Gas & Electric 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 1,667 20,000
590.03 · Water 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 917 11,000
590.04 · Waste Management 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 142 1,700
590.06 · Landscape - Grounds Environment 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 838 10,050
590.07 · Custodial Services 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 780 9,360
590.08 · Elevator 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 3,000
590.09 · Vehicle Expenses 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 400
590.10 · Maintenance Services & Repairs 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 5,000
590.11 · Medical Records Store & Service 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 30,000
590.12 · Fire Alarm System 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 208 2,500

Total 590 · Mgmt./Maint. - S. Brandon Road 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 9,834 118,010

600 · Community Health Contracts
600.02 · Fbk Citizens Crime Prevention 2,625 0 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 0 2,625 0 10,500
600.04 · Boys & Girls Club 18,428 0 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 0 9,188 0 45,990
600.05 · Community Health Systems, Inc. 26,250 0 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 0 26,250 0 105,000
600.06 · Fallbrook Land Conservancy 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 10,000
600.07 · Fbk Senior Citizens Srvc Club 19,688 0 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 0 19,688 0 78,750
600.08 · Fallbrook Smiles Project 18,769 0 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 0 18,769 0 75,075
600.09 · Fallbrook Union  H. S. District 5,000 0 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 0 5,000 0 20,000
600.11 · Palomar Family Counseling Srvc 20,738 0 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 0 20,738 0 82,950
600.17 · Foundation for Senior Care 54,882 0 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 0 54,882 0 219,527
600.18 · Fallbrook Food Pantry 50,000 0 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 0 25,200 0 125,600
600.33 · REINS Therapeutic Prgm 17,063 0 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 0 17,063 0 68,250
600.46 · Mental Health Systems, Inc. 2,428 0 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 0 2,428 0 9,711
600.48 · UCSD Eye Mobile for Children 0 0 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 0 2,975 0 8,925
600.53 · Jeremiah's  Ranch 3,872 0 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 0 3,872 0 15,488
600.54 · Healthy Adventures Foundation 2,363 0 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 0 2,363 0 9,450
600.57 · NC Fire Protection District 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 25,000 0 0 0 0 25,000
600.58 · Michelle's Place 6,300 0 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 0 6,300 0 25,200

Total 600 · Community Health Contracts 258,403 0 0 0 217,338 0 0 242,338 0 0 217,338 0 935,416

800 · District Direct Care Services
800.02 · Med+ Urgent Care 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total 800 · District Direct Care Services 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 60,000

Total Expense 347,032 97,480 107,630 88,630 305,967 91,130 78,631 320,967 81,131 78,630 295,968 81,131 1,974,326

Net Ordinary Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 25,316 419,249 399,086 (20,579) 104,450 (48,215) (42,703) (196,584) (8,429) 235,850

Net Income (302,383) (43,935) (49,424) 25,316 419,249 399,086 (20,579) 104,450 (48,215) (42,703) (196,584) (8,429) 235,850

FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT
Profit & Loss Budget Overview

July 2018 through June 2019

Report 4 Page 14 of 121



REPORT 5

Page 15 of 121



REPORT 6
Page 16 of 121



Page 17 of 121



Page 18 of 121



Page 19 of 121



REPORT 9

Page 20 of 121



Page 21 of 121



Page 22 of 121



Page 23 of 121



Page 24 of 121



 

 

 
 

MINUTES 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE 

Wednesday, November 7, 2018 at 5:00 P.M. 

Community Meeting Room, 1636 E. Mission Road, Fallbrook CA 92028 

 

Committee Members Present: Directors Barbara Mroz, Gordon Tinker, Howard Salmon and Stephen 

Abbott.   

 
Staff Members Present:  Chief Executive Officer Bobbi Palmer, Administrative Assistant Linda 

Bannerman, Accountant Kathy Bogle, Bookkeeper Wendy Lyon and General Counsel Blaise Jackson 

who attended via teleconference. 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order by Chairperson Mroz at 5:04 p.m. 

 

2. Public Comments 

Kathy Bogle had prepared a statement related to her history with the District, the development 

of the Wellness Center and some concerns regarding the bookkeeping and CPA positions at 

FRHD.  She said she believes the bookkeeper should work at the FRHD office, rather than 

remotely.  She also said she believes the CPA position should be held by someone local rather 

than long distance.  Discussion ensued as to whether the Finance Committee Chair had been 

included in the interviews for the CPA and whether a new contract had been signed.  There 

were further questions regarding the contract used. 

Action:  It was moved by Howard Salmon, seconded by Stephen Abbott, to have the Finance 

Committee Chair interview all CPA candidates and this be added to the agenda for tomorrow’s 

Special Meeting. 

Motion Carried – 4-0.  1 Absent. 

 

3. Review of Financial Statements for September 2018 

1) Balance Sheet Comparison of September 2018 to August 2018 

2) Income Statement for the Month Ended September 30, 2018 & Fiscal Year to Date 

3) Profit & Loss Actual vs Budget – July 2018 through September 2018 

4) Profit & Loss Budget Overview July 2018 through June 2019 

The above financial reports were reviewed with no major concerns regarding any unexpected 

variances.  Due to the development of the Wellness Center, it was noted that some expenses 

had increased for that facility. 

5) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Statement – September 2018 

The balance in the LAIF account through September of 2018 was $1,472,559. 

Page 25 of 121



 

 

6) CalTRUST Statement – September 2018 

The balance in the CalTRUST account through September of 2018 was $6,742,213.  There 

was discussion regarding looking at a variety of investment funds and what might be available 

to the District.  It was noted there is a policy for District investments.  The District’s auditor, 

Fechter and Co., offered to provide a workshop for Board members regarding investment 

accounts. 

7) Property Tax Revenue – Fiscal Year to Date 

$68,348 has been received during the past three months from property taxes.  A large 

payment is usually received in December of each year.  She expressed concerns she has 

regarding control on expenses and perceptions among community health recipients regarding 

the cost of the Blue Zone.  Further discussion ensued. Director Abbott asked if we have a 

reserve policy and if not, suggested one might be necessary. CEO Palmer said, at the 

suggestion of the Board President, the Finance Committee now reviews a Checkbook account 

for oversight of expenses and tracking purposes.  She said she believes some of the concerns 

are the result of growing pains as the Wellness Center is developed.  There was discussion 

regarding fiscal policies and procedures.  Director Salmon suggested the Finance Committee 

focus on budget variances.  The CEO also suggested that review of legal invoices be included 

in the Finance Committee of the Whole agenda. She said legal fees are often budgeted at ten 

percent of the revenue received from property taxes.   

8)   Check Detail Report – September 2018 

           9)   Checkbook Report – August 2018 

          10)  Checkbook Report – September 2018 

 The above listed reports were available for review. 

 The meeting adjourned to Closed Session at 5:55 p.m. 

 

4. Closed Session 

1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL CONCERNING EXPOSURE TO LITIGATION 

PER Govt Code 54956.9(d)(2) 

 

5. Return to Open Session 

The Board returned to Open Session at 6:19 p.m. 

 

6. Adjournment 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 6:20 p.m. 

 

 

 

      

Barbara Mroz, Chair 

Finance Committee 

 

Page 26 of 121



Page 27 of 121



Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

Thursday, November 8, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Wellness Center  

Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Present:  Directors Gordon Tinker, Stephen Abbott, Howard Salmon, Barbara Mroz 
and Bill Leach. 

Also present:  Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson and Special Counsel Maria Roberts. 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Gordon Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:03 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

None. 

 

C.   PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

 

D. CLOSED SESSION 
Closed Session began at 6:04 p.m. 

 
D1. Conference with Legal Counsel Concerning Exposure to Litigation per Gov’t Code 

54956.9(d)(2) – one case 

 
D2. Personnel Matters pursuant to Gov’t Code 54957(b) – CEO Annual Evaluation 
 

E. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION at 8:12 p.m. 
The Board directed counsel to take appropriate action on item D1.  
The Board continued its annual evaluation on item D2.  
 

F. ADJOURNMENT 

  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

 

       

Howard Salmon, Board Vice President 

 

       

Bill Leach, Acting Secretary  

Page 28 of 121



Page 29 of 121



Page 1 of 4 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Wednesday, November 14, 2018, 6:00 p.m. 

NEW MEETING LOCATION 
Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Present:  Directors Gordon Tinker, Barbara Mroz, Stephen Abbott and Bill Leach.  Director Howard 
Salmon joined the meeting remotely by teleconference pursuant to government Code Section 54953 
from the following location: 1674 Baja Vista Dr. Fallbrook 
Also present:  CEO Bobbi Palmer, Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson, Board Secretaries Pam Knox and 
Linda Bannerman. 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Gordon Tinker called the meeting to order at 6:06 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 
 None. 
 
C. BOARD MEMBER AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Marc Brakebill, a resident involved with youth sports in the community, addressed the Board with 
a request. He said practice sites are limited, especially for field sports.  He requested that the 
Board of Directors consider allowing a portion of our space at the Wellness Center to be used for 
that purpose. He thanked the board members for their consideration. 
 

D. PRESENTATIONS 
 D1. Gordon Tinker and Stephen Abbott’s Service on FRHD’s board 

CEO Bobbi Palmer said she has enjoyed the privilege of working with Gordon Tinker and 
Stephen Abbott for the past three years.  She said during their tenures on the Board of Directors 
they have both experienced significant challenges and served during turbulent times.  Each of 
them served with integrity and honor and it is a pleasure to recognize their years of service.  
Gordon Tinker served from 2005 – 2018 and Stephen Abbott served from 2010 – 2018.  Each 
were presented an award and photos were taken with wives and others.  Senator Joel Anderson 
provided Certificates of Recognition for each of them for their community service as well. 
Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson presented “tongue in cheek” awards of a top to Gordon Tinker and 
a magnifying glass to Stephen Abbott. 

 
E. CONSENT ITEMS 
 E1. Approval of September 2018 Financial Statements 
 E2. Minutes of October 3, 2018 Finance Committee Meeting 
 E3. Minutes of October 10, 2018 Regular Board Meeting 
 E4. Minutes of October 30, 2018 Special Board Meeting 
 No member of the Board asked to have any of the above items pulled for further discussion. 

Action:  It was moved by Director Abbott, seconded by Director Mroz, to approve the above listed 
Consent Items as presented. 
Motion carried.  5-0 

Page 30 of 121



Page 2 of 4 
 

 

  
F. REPORTS 

F1. Finance Committee – Committee of the Whole, Chair: Director Mroz 
Finance Committee Chair Barbara Mroz reported that the Finance Committee of the 
Whole met on November 7 to review financial statements through September 2018.  She 
said during Public Comment Period Accountant Kathy Bogle provided a commentary to 
the Board regarding her recommendations for financial oversight.  In review of the 
financial statements there were no major variances and it was noted that during a period 
of growth some accounts will exceed budget.  Property taxes collected during the past 
three months totaled $68,348 with a large check anticipated to be received in December.  
The LAIF account had a balance of $1,472,559 at the end of September, and the 
CalTRUST account balance was $6,742,213.  Recommendations made by the auditors 
will be further discussed at the next Finance Committee meeting.  

F2. Gov’t/Public Relation/Community Relations Committee – Directors Salmon and Tinker 
Director Salmon said he had no report at this time.  However, he wanted to express his 
sincere appreciation to Directors Tinker and Abbott for their years of service on the Board 
of Directors and his respect for both of them. 

F3. Facilities/Strategic Planning Committee – Directors Abbott and Salmon 
Director Abbott said he had no report and appreciated the opportunity to express his 
feelings about having served on the Board.  He said while serving on this Board there 
were multiple challenges, e.g., closure of the hospital and the sale of the building & 
property.  He noted that there were also rewards along with the challenges, and when he 
talks about team building, he uses this Board as an example of how well people can work 
together to achieve a common goal.  He said he considers it an honor to have served on 
the FRHD Board.  Gordon echoed Stephen’s statements and thanked the staff for their 
support. 

F4. Chief Executive Officer – Bobbi Palmer MBA MSW 
In the process of developing a collective impact model to support Fallbrook Regional 
Health District (FRHD) goals, the Community Health Contracts (CHC) along with the 
collaborative efforts of CentraForce, NCCCHI and Galvanized Strategies, the following 
concepts for 2019 will be implemented. 

• Funders and implementers collectively understand that social problems, and their 
solutions, arise from the interaction of many organizations within a larger system. 

• Progress depends on working together toward the same goal and measuring the 
same thing. 

• Large-scale impact depends on increasing cross-sector alignment and learning 
among many organizations. 

• Business sectors are an essential partner for collective impact. 

• Organizations share best practices and lessons learned. 
Phase 1 is complete, and we are now in Phase 2.  We are now going to seek 
additional funding. 

F5. General Counsel – Blaise Jackson 
Counsel Blaise Jackson provided an update to the election results.  The outcome of 
several races has yet to be determined.   He said the remainder of his comments would 
be confined to the Discussion/Action Item and Closed Session.  

   
G. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

G1. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 423 – The Intention To Transition From At-
Large To District-Based Elections Pursuant To Elections Code 10010(E)(J)(A) – 1st 
Reading 
President Tinker asked Counsel to provide information regarding this item.  Blaise 
Jackson said this resolution expresses the intention of FRHD to move from at-large voting 

Page 31 of 121



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

to district-based elections thereby providing for a more equitable representation of the 
residents within the District.  This method of electing members to the governing body of 
FRHD would mean that a candidate must reside within an election district that is a 
divisible part of FRHD’s jurisdiction and is elected only by voters residing within that 
election district.  Mr. Jackson explained that the Board is taking this action now with the 
understanding that it will be the decision of this board, not a decision forced upon them. 
There was a question regarding how this would be implemented with only two seats up for 
election in 2020.   
 
The CEO said she has already engaged with Best, Best & Krieger to implement this 
process.  Counsel said there are other firms that might be less costly.  Discussion ensued.     
Director Leach said he would be interested in pursuing a proposal from legal counsel or 
other firms which might be less costly. 
 
Discussion:  There was discussion regarding the difference between construction 
contracts and professional services contracts. 
 
Action:  Director Leach moved to table this action item to a special meeting to take place 
at noon on Friday, November 16, at the Wellness Center. 
Roll Call Vote: 
AYES    Directors Leach, Salmon, Abbott, Mroz and Tinker     
NOES          None           
ABSENT      None           
ABSTAIN      None           
 

H. ITEMS FOR SUBSEQUENT MEETINGS 
 H1. Other Director/Staff discussion items 
  H1a. Item(s) for future board agendas 
  H1b. Announcements of upcoming events: 

• NCCCHI meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 2:00-2:30pm, Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Health Under One Roof, Rm 2,1636 E. Mission Rd. Fallbrook 

• Finance Committee of the Whole meeting – 1st Wednesday, November 7, 

5:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd. 

Fallbrook 

• Christmas Parade – 1st Saturday, December 1, 5:00pm – Main Ave., 

Downtown Fallbrook 

• Woman of Wellness meeting – 1st Thursday, January 3, 6pm – Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Wellness Advisory Committee meeting – 2nd Wednesday, January 9, 5:00-

6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., 

Fallbrook 

• Board of Directors Workshop – Saturday, January 12, 8:00am – Fallbrook 

Wellness Center, Community Room,1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

• Community Collaborative for Health & Wellness Committee (CCH&W) 

meeting – 3rd Wednesday, January 16, 9:00-10:30am, Fallbrook Wellness 

Center, Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 
H2. Next Regular Board meeting/Swearing-In of New Board Members/Election of 

Officers of the Board – Wednesday, December 12, 6:00pm, Fallbrook Wellness Center, 
Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

Page 32 of 121



Page 4 of 4 
 

 

 
I. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board adjourned into Closed Session at 6:45 p.m. 
 
I1. Personnel Matters Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 – Annual Evaluation of 

Chief Executive Officer 
 

J. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
 
K. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 
 K1. Chief Executive Officer Contract Approval. No action taken. 
 
L. ADJOURNMENT 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:14 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
        

Howard Salmon, Board Vice President 
 
 
 
        
Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 33 of 121



Page 34 of 121



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

MINUTES 

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

Friday, November 16, 2018, 12:00 p.m. 

Fallbrook Wellness Center  

Community Room, 1636 E. Mission Rd., Fallbrook 

 

Present:  Directors Gordon Tinker, Howard Salmon, Barbara Mroz and Bill Leach. 

Also present:  CEO Bobbi Palmer, Legal Counsel Blaise Jackson, Board Secretaries 
Pam Knox and Linda Bannerman. 

 
A. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

President Gordon Tinker called the meeting to order at 12:01 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
B. ADDITIONS TO AGENDA 

None 

 

C.   PUBLIC COMMENT 

None 

 

D. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

 
D1. Consideration and Adoption of Resolution No. 423 – The Intention To Transition From At-

Large To District-Based Elections Pursuant To Elections Code 10010 (E) (J)(A) – tabled from 
November 14, 2018. 

 Counsel reiterated the purpose of this resolution which is made in order to be proactive in this 
matter.  Other Districts have been forced to take this action and this Board wants to make this 
decision now.  A concern had been raised regarding the time limit between passing this 
resolution and the first public hearing regarding this matter.  Counsel advised that we are able 
to modify the language regarding the time limit to reflect that every effort will be made to meet 
the 30-day limit, however due to the holidays, it will assure it will be done within 60 days after 
the adoption of this Embracement Resolution.  

 Action:  It was moved by Director Salmon, seconded by Bill Leach to modify Resolution No. 
423 to reflect that time limit and with that modification approve Resolution No. 423. 

 
 Roll Call Vote: 
 Ayes:  Directors Leach, Salmon, Mroz and Tinker       
 Noes:  None            
 Absent:  Director Abbott          
 Abstain:             

Page 35 of 121



Page 2 of 2 
 

 

D2. Consideration of Proposals from Legal Counsel – Services incident to transition to District-
Based Elections 
Counsel said at the Board’s request at the regular meeting, he has brought a proposal from his 
office for services incident to transition to District-Based Elections.  He said his proposal is not to 
exceed $8,050 for the entire process.  Discussion ensued.  The proposal from a previous firm 
(Best, Best & Krieger) quoted a rate of $385 per hr.  Counsel’s proposal rate is $175 per hr. 
Action:  It was moved by Director Leach, seconded by Director Mroz to accept the proposal from 
Scott & Jackson Law Offices. 
Motion carried  4-0  1 absent. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 

  There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 12:14 p.m. 

 

 

 

       

Howard Salmon, Board Vice President 

 

 

 

       

Board Secretary/Clerk 

Page 36 of 121



Page 37 of 121



Page 38 of 121



Page 39 of 121



Page 40 of 121



Page 41 of 121



Page 42 of 121



Page 43 of 121



Page 44 of 121



Page 45 of 121



Page 46 of 121



Page 47 of 121



Page 48 of 121



Page 49 of 121



Page 50 of 121



Page 51 of 121



Page 52 of 121



Page 53 of 121



Page 54 of 121



 

  

  

December 
2018 

    

ACHD Advocate 
 

 

 

  

In This Edition 
  

Trustee Spotlight: Howard Salmon, Fallbrook Regional Health 
District 

What inspired you to run for a seat on the 

Fallbrook Regional Health District Board? 

During early 2014, I became aware that 

Fallbrook Regional Health District's hospital 

was having significant operating and financial 

problems. I recognized that my experience in 

operating hospitals and other healthcare 

organizations as well as a consultant to major 

health systems would be helpful in a financial 

turnaround. 

  

What is one accomplishment that you and 

the Board have implemented that you are 

most proud of?  

Together, we have created a new vision for the District that the community has 

embraced. The new vision - improving the health and well-being of its residents 

- has turned into a reality with the purchase of 4.7 acres of property, a church 

with many classrooms and other facilities to provide wellness services. Also, 

as a part of the new vision, the board has a goal for the community to become 

a Blue Zone by 2022. 

  

What is unique about your District and the constituents you serve?  

The communities of Fallbrook, Bonsall, Rainbow and De Luz are ethnically and 

socio-economically diverse. This includes being home to many retirees, 

veterans, a large Hispanic population and this wide variety contributes to a 

range of health conditions. 

 

 

 

 

Page 55 of 121

http://www.achd.org/


  

What is a goal you hope to see your District achieve during your tenure? 

I would like us to fully develop the community's wellness and wellbeing 

programs and facilities. 

  

How has being a member of ACHD helped you as a leader, your District 

and your residents and the community? 

We moved to Fallbrook almost eight years ago, being on the Health District 

board has helped my integration into this close-knit community, developing 

friendships, and becoming more aware across the spectrum of community 

needs. 

  

What advice or encouragement would you give someone considering 

running for the Healthcare District Board? 

Serving is very fulfilling but it is not always a bed of roses and our Board has 

had to face difficult decisions to help the community's health and wellness. 

  

When not serving your community, what do you like to do in your free 

time? 

I am lucky enough to continue my healthcare career with nThrive, a major 

healthcare services and consulting company. We also like to fly fish, travel, and 

enjoy our family which includes five wonderful grandsons. And I enjoy serving 

on the ACHD Board of Directors as well as the Board of San Diego 

Organization of Healthcare Leaders.  

 

Page 56 of 121



Page 57 of 121



Page 58 of 121



Page 59 of 121



Page 60 of 121



Page 61 of 121



Page 62 of 121



 

RETENTION ITEMS 
Authorization to Destroy Outdated Records 

(Gov Code 34090, Per Board Resolution 393)** 

 

SHRED DATE DOCUMENTS 

1985 Rothrock International (A/P) 1978 

1987 Gerald J Sullivan & Assoc. Inc Liability Insurance Policy (Insurance) 1981 

1993 Sec Pacific Escrow Loan Report (A/P) 1987 

2002 Jefferson Park Plaza Lab Lease (A/P) 1995 

2006 Administrative Assistant Contract Invoices & Agreements (A/P) 1999 

2007 Cobra Contractors – Barbara Kovacic, Jeff Wilson (A/P) 2000 

2007 FB Hospital Auxiliary Board (A/P) 2000 

2007 Payroll Check Register (Employee Time Records) 2000 

2007 Pillsbury Madison – Law (A/P) 2000 

2008 MCI (Long Distance Phone) (A/P) 2001 

2009 ACHD Alpha Fund Audited Reports (Audit) 1990 

2009 Charlotte Anderson Consulting (A/P) 2002 

2009 FHD (Audit) 1981-1982 

2010 Attorney Davis Wright Tremaine Pension Plan (Employee Time Records) 2003 

2018 Deloitte & Touche LLP (Audit) 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 

2018 Final Medicare Cost Report (Audit) 1998 

Page 63 of 121



Page 64 of 121



Proposed Scope of Work 

To provide the flexibility to meet the needs of the client if it decides to move to by-district 
elections, NDC offers a full menu of districting options:  

Basic Districting Project Elements  

Includes all of the services listed below: 

Basic Elements cost .................................................................................................................. $22,500 

• Project Setup and coordination: 
o Development of redistricting database including Census and California Statewide 

Database data;  
o Incorporation of any Geographic Information System (GIS) data that the 

District wishes to include and provides (often including clinic and hospital 
locations; service area divisions; school attendance areas; important local 
landmarks; or local neighborhood boundaries); 

o Initial discussion with key staff and/or Board members about demographics, 
communities of interest, schedule and criteria; 

o Any phone- or web-conference calls to discussion the project's progress or 
answer any Board, staff or media questions that may arise; 
 

• Plan Development: 
o Creating of 2 to 4 initial draft maps for Board and public consideration; 
o Analysis and preparation for Board consideration of all whole or partial plans 

submitted by the public; 
o Conversion of all maps and reports to web-friendly versions for online posting; 
o Online posting of all maps to an interactive website for detailed Board and public 

review; 
o Any requested additional maps and/or map revisions requested; 

• Plan Presentation: 
o Presentations at Board meetings and/or public forums by phone- or web-

conference (or in person for the “in person presentation” fee listed under 
“optional elements” below); 

• Work with the County Registrar of Voters to implement the final adopted plan. 

Optional Districting Project Elements  

Selected at the client’s discretion:  

• In-person presentation at Board meetings, facilitation of  
public forum(s), and/or any other requested meetings; ................................................. $2,000 

• Preparation and processing of paper, PDF and Excel-based "public participation  
kits" (paper kits that allow the public to draw and submit their own plans). .............. $4,000 

• Creation, hosting, and updating of an NDC--managed project information  
website (if the client does not wish to manage a project website as part  
of its existing website).......................................................................................................... $3,500 

Page 65 of 121



• Hosting, managing and processing submitted plans for an online interactive  
system that allows public to draw and submit proposed districting plans  
through a standard web browser ...................................................................................... $13,500 

• Spanish translation of project-related materials .................................................. $125 per page 

Stated prices include all travel, printing (except public participation kits and any large-plot 
maps), and other anticipated expenses.  

Page 66 of 121



  National Demographics Corporation 

Phone: (818) 254-1221 P.O. Box 5271 info@NDCresearch.com 
FAX (818) 254-1221 Glendale, CA 91221 www.NDCresearch.com 

 

 

 

A Proposal to the  

Fallbrook Regional Health  

District for Districting Services 
 

 

 

 

By National Demographics Corporation 

Douglas Johnson, President 

 

 

 

 

November 27, 2018 
 

Page 67 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 1  

 

November 27, 2018 
Blaise J. Jackson Esq. 
Fallbrook Regional Health District 
c/o Law Offices of Scott & Jackson 
16935 W. Bernardo Drive, Suite 170 
San Diego, CA  92127 
 
Dear Mr. Jackson, 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide this proposal to the Fallbrook Regional Health District. 
NDC has 39 years of experience districting and redistricting local jurisdictions, including assisting Tri-
City Health Care District, Grossmont-Cuyamaca Community College District, Fallbrook Elementary 
School District, Ramona Unified School District, the San Diego County Supervisors, and many city 
and elementary school districts in the area with their California Voting Rights Act analysis, districting, 
and redistricting projects. NDC has unmatched experience working with jurisdictions facing California 
Voting Rights Act concerns and/or making the initial change from at-large to by-district elections, 
having guided over 300 jurisdictions through the challenges of assessing potential liability under the 
California Voting Rights Act and over 200 jurisdictions through their initial transitions from at-large 
to by-district elections. We welcome the opportunity to bring the firm’s expertise and skills to assist 
the District. 

For each project, there are certain required basic elements, and there are a number of options that the 
District can include or leave out at its option. NDC carefully tailors each project to the needs and 
goals of each client. NDC welcomes the opportunity to work with the District to encourage public 
participation in this process, and NDC offers a number of tools developed specifically for public 
engagement in this effort. NDC welcomes the opportunity to work with the District to have an 
extensive and empowering public engagement process. 

NDC looks forward to working with you on this effort. Please call or email if you have any questions, 
concerns, or requests regarding this proposal, or if any additional information would be useful. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Douglas Johnson 
President 

Page 68 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 2  

 

Table of Contents 
 

About National Demographics Corporation: ........................................................... 3 
Brief Company History ..................................................................................... 3 
NDC and the California Voting Rights Act .................................................. 3 

NDC’s Districting Process ........................................................................................... 4 
Technical Expertise ........................................................................................... 4 
Public Involvement ........................................................................................... 4 
Minority Group Outreach/Partnerships ........................................................ 4 
Openness ............................................................................................................. 4 
Media Outreach .................................................................................................. 5 
Local Leadership ................................................................................................ 5 

Impeccable References ................................................................................................. 5 
Proposed Scope of Work ............................................................................................. 5 

Basic Districting Project Elements ................................................................. 5 
Optional Districting Project Elements ........................................................... 6 
Other Potential Project-Related Expenses: ................................................... 6 

Sample Districting/Redistricting References ............................................................ 6 
Additional Analysis ........................................................................................................ 7 
Requested Payment terms: ........................................................................................... 7 
Conclusion ...................................................................................................................... 8 
Proposal Acceptance ..................................................................................................... 8 
  

Appendix 
Resume of President Douglas Johnson ..................................................................... 9 
Resume of Vice President Justin Levitt ................................................................... 11 
Resume of Senior Consultant Ms. Shalice Tilton ................................................... 13 
Resume of Senior Consultant Mr. Robert McEntire ............................................. 14 
Sample Client List ........................................................................................................ 15 
 

Page 69 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 3  

 

About National Demographics Corporation: 

Brief Company History 

NDC has served hundreds of local governments over the past 36 years. Founded in 1979, 
NDC has performed work in all regions of the country, serving clients as varied as the States 
of Mississippi, Arizona, Florida and Illinois, Clark County Nevada, American Waterworks, 
California’s Franchise Tax Board, the San Diego Unified School District, the Foundation for 
California, and the Arizona cities of Glendale, Mesa, Peoria, Phoenix, Mesa and Surprise. In 
the Central Valley, NDC has worked with clients in and around Hanford, Dinuba, Tulare, 
Kings County, Coalinga, Corcoran, Reedley, Lemoore, and Fresno, among others. 

The company is especially well known for its work in local and state government. Since 2002, 
NDC has established a reputation as the state's leading demographic expert on the California 
Voting Rights Act (CVRA), having performed demographic assessments of potential CVRA 
liability for nearly 300 jurisdictions. 

No company has been responsible for addressing the electoral demographic needs of more 
local governments, as NDC has districted and/or redistricted well over 150 local health care 
districts, school districts, cities, water districts, county boards, and other local districts. 
Nationally recognized as a pioneer in good government districting and redistricting, NDC is 
especially experienced in working with local jurisdictions in California, Arizona and Nevada.  

This background gives us unmatched expertise in the issues, questions, and decisions 
jurisdictions face in any discussion regarding the California and Federal Voting Rights Act and 
related election system choices. 

NDC and the California Voting Rights Act 

NDC has performed analysis of potential demographic liability under the California Voting 
Rights Act (CVRA) for over 200 jurisdictions in California. For those jurisdictions actually 
sued under CVRA (none of which were NDC clients prior to the filing of the lawsuit), most 
hired NDC to assist in evaluating their demographics, voting history, legal situation, and 
options. This includes Madera Unified, Modesto, the City of Madera, Visalia, Compton, the 
City of Escondido, Palmdale, Santa Clarita Community College District, Glendale Community 
College District, ABC Unified, and Anaheim.  

No other firm even comes close to NDC's experience with this still-new law, and many of the 
jurisdictions listed above came to NDC after discovering the demographers they initially hired 
either did not sufficiently understand California and Federal Voting Rights law and the related 
demographics to help, or the demographers so badly handled the project that their own 
demographers’ work directly resulted in the jurisdiction being sued. 

NDC’s expertise in both Voting Rights demographics and in the drawing of election districts 
is widely recognized. NDC’s personnel are responsible for numerous books and articles on 
the subject, and President Douglas Johnson has been a speaker on the CVRA at conferences 
of the California School Board Association, the California Latino School Board Member 
Association, the California League of Cities, and other state and national conferences.  

Page 70 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 4  

 

NDC’s Districting Process 

The following information is provided for information and for use if a jurisdiction decides to 
move to by-district elections. If the client decides not to move to by-district elections, the 
work would end with the demographic analysis described above. 

Technical Expertise 

NDC’s personnel are nationally recognized as leaders in the districting field, and are 
responsible for numerous books and articles on the subject. NDC possesses all the hardware 
and software necessary to the districting and redistricting needs of any jurisdiction, and its 
personnel have extensive experience in performing graphics districting and redistricting work 
as well as in developing databases for districting use. 

The technical demands of a districting effort are high, and NDC is the undisputed leader in 
this field. But far more important than technical expertise are the interpersonal understanding 
and experience working with all parties in the process, including the public. 

Public Involvement 

NDC pioneered the “transparent districting” approach which involves the public at every 
stage of the process. The company invented the "public participation kit" for public 
participation in districting efforts, which many of the firm’s competitors now attempt to 
duplicate. Perhaps NDC’s most valuable service is the firm’s experience transforming often-
contentious and passionate debates on this difficult subject into thoughtful, constructive 
discussions focused on the options and outcomes rather than individual personalities or 
positions. NDC also has considerable experience working with translators in public forums 
and providing materials in English and Spanish. 

Minority Group Outreach/Partnerships 

U.S. Supreme Court decisions are constantly changing the rules regarding districting, "race-
based districting," and the establishment of districts focused on the electoral power of 
“protected classes.” It is crucial that the consultant work with the racial, ethnic, and other 
community groups at the beginning of the process to welcome their ideas and develop the 
appropriate expectations regarding minority representation prospects. No NDC local 
districting or redistricting plans has ever been challenged in Court or by the Department of 
Justice. 

Openness 

Any change in election systems can have momentous implications for the distribution of 
political power in a jurisdiction and for access by groups and individuals to the governance 
process. Not surprisingly, such changes often attract much public attention, sometimes 
generate intense controversy, and may draw charges of manipulation and abuse of power. 
Indeed, disputes over the form and substance of the process may often result in stalemate or 
legal challenge. It is crucial, therefore, that the jurisdiction establish, at the beginning, a process 
that is not only fair, but that is seen to be fair, to all contending groups and individuals.  

Page 71 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 5  

 

Media Outreach 

The firm’s work has been widely praised in the media, and NDC has worked extensively on 
background, off the record, and on the record with all types of press including radio, television, 
newspaper, and new media.  

Local Leadership 

NDC views its role as an advisor and technical resource. The firm advises its clients, but every 
project remains the client’s project. NDC offers guidance based on its experience and 
expertise, but ultimately the decisions are made by the jurisdiction itself. NDC welcomes the 
chance to assist this project under the guidance and direction of the jurisdiction's elected 
leadership, key staff members, and the entire community. 

Impeccable References 

All of NDC’s former clients – without exception – can be contacted for references. The firm 
has no embarrassing projects. All NDC’s local districting and redistricting plans have been 
accepted into law with a minimum of controversy. A list of references is included with this 
proposal. 

Each of these elements of NDC's methodology is incorporated into the proposed project 
process below. 

Proposed Scope of Work 

To provide the flexibility to meet the needs of the client if it decides to move to by-district 
elections, NDC offers a full menu of districting options:  

Basic Districting Project Elements  

Includes all of the services listed below: 

Basic Elements cost .................................................................................................................. $22,500 

 Project Setup and coordination: 
o Development of redistricting database including Census and California Statewide 

Database data;  
o Incorporation of any Geographic Information System (GIS) data that the 

District wishes to include and provides (often including clinic and hospital 
locations; service area divisions; school attendance areas; important local 
landmarks; or local neighborhood boundaries); 

o Initial discussion with key staff and/or Board members about demographics, 
communities of interest, schedule and criteria; 

o Any phone- or web-conference calls to discussion the project's progress or 
answer any Board, staff or media questions that may arise; 
 

 Plan Development: 
o Creating of 2 to 4 initial draft maps for Board and public consideration; 

Page 72 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 6  

 

o Analysis and preparation for Board consideration of all whole or partial plans 
submitted by the public; 

o Conversion of all maps and reports to web-friendly versions for online posting; 
o Online posting of all maps to an interactive website for detailed Board and public 

review; 
o Any requested additional maps and/or map revisions requested; 

 Plan Presentation: 
o Presentations at Board meetings and/or public forums by phone- or web-

conference (or in person for the “in person presentation” fee listed under 
“optional elements” below); 

 Work with the County Registrar of Voters to implement the final adopted plan. 

Optional Districting Project Elements  

Selected at the client’s discretion:  

 In-person presentation at Board meetings, facilitation of  
public forum(s), and/or any other requested meetings; ................................................. $2,000 

 Preparation and processing of paper, PDF and Excel-based "public participation  
kits" (paper kits that allow the public to draw and submit their own plans). .............. $4,000 

 Creation, hosting, and updating of an NDC--managed project information  
website (if the client does not wish to manage a project website as part  
of its existing website). ........................................................................................................ $3,500 

 Hosting, managing and processing submitted plans for an online interactive  
system that allows public to draw and submit proposed districting plans  
through a standard web browser ...................................................................................... $13,500 

 Spanish translation of project-related materials .................................................. $125 per page 

Stated prices include all travel, printing (except public participation kits and any large-plot 
maps), and other anticipated expenses.  

Timeline: The detailed timeline will be worked out in consultation with the District. The 
project can be done in anywhere from a few weeks to ten months, depending on how much 
public engagement is desired and how fast the District wishes to complete the work. 

Other Potential Project-Related Expenses: 

The only anticipated additional districting expenses would be any site or staff costs for 
conducting the community forums; and the cost of printing or copying paper copies of the 
“Public Participation Kit.” In NDC’s experience, most public participants will download and 
print the Kits in their own homes or offices. 

Sample Districting/Redistricting References 

Mr. Rick Haydon, City Manager, City of Santa Maria, 110 E. Cook Street, Santa Maria, CA 
93454-5190. Phone: (805) 925-0951 ext. 2200. Email: rhaydon@cityofsantamaria.org 

Page 73 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 7  

 

Ms. Pam Abel, Superintendent, Modesto City Schools, 426 Locust Street, Modesto, CA 
95351-2631. Phone: (209) 574-1616. Email: able.p@mcs4kids.com 

Mr. Darrell Talbert, City Manager, City of Corona, 400 S Vicentia Avenue, Corona, CA 
92882-2187. Phone: 951.279.3670. Email: Darrell.Talbert@ci.corona.ca.us 

Mr. Steve Carrigan, City Manager, City of Merced, 678 West 18th Street, Merced, CA  95340. 
Phone: 209- 385-6834 Email: citymanager@cityofmerced.org 

Mr. Devin Reif, Strategic Planning, City of Oakland, 250 Frank H. Ogawa Plaza, Suite 3315, 
Oakland, CA 94612. Phone: 510-238-3550 Email: DReiff@oaklandnet.com 

Mr. David Silberman, Deputy County Counsel, San Mateo County, 400 County Center, 6th 
Floor, Redwood City, CA 94063. Phone: 650-363-4749 Email: dsilberman@smcgov.org 

Judge Hugh Rose (retired), Chairman, City of Modesto Districting Commission. 508 King 
Richard Lane, Modesto, CA  95350. Phone (209) 522-0719. Email: hhrose@hotmail.com. 

Ms. Lucinda Aja. City Clerk, City of Buckeye, Arizona. 100 N Apache Rd, Suite A, Buckeye, 
AZ  85326. Phone (623) 349-6007. Fax (623) 349-6098. Email: laja@buckeyeaz.gov. 

Mr. Michael E. Smith, Partner, Lozano Smith, 7404 North Spalding Ave., Fresno, CA 93720, 
(559)431-5600, MSmith@lozanosmith.com. 

Ms. Marguerite Leoni, Partner, Nielsen, Merksamer, Parrinello, Gross & Leoni, 2350 Kerner 
Boulevard, Suite 250, San Rafael, CA  94901, (415)634-6840, mleoni@nmgovlaw.com (or 
ask for Mr. Chris Skinnell). 

Additional Analysis 

NDC is happy to assist with any additional analysis that the client requests at our standard 
hourly rates: 

Principal (Dr. Douglas Johnson) .......... $200 per hour 
Vice President (Justin Levitt) ................. $125 per hour 
Senior Analyst .......................................... $75 per hour 
Analyst / Clerical ..................................... $50 per hour 

Dr. Johnson is also available for deposition and/or testimony work if needed, at $250 per 
hour. 

Requested Payment terms: 

NDC requests that one-half payment be made at project start and one-half at the conclusion. 

  

Page 74 of 121



 

 National Demographics Corporation 

 Page 8  

 

Conclusion 

Since its founding NDC has been the preeminent company in the nation devoted to local 
election systems. To summarize: 
 NDC, founded in 1979, has a demonstrated record of financial solvency. 
 NDC’s hardware and software resources were specially designed and acquired for 

districting and redistricting purposes. 
 NDC’s highly respected personnel have impeccable credentials in each aspect of the 

districting and redistricting processes. 
 NDC’s suggested approach has been tested in many jurisdictions. 
 Any NDC client can be contacted for testimonials and reference. 
 NDC has more experience in the field of municipal political election systems than any 

other company of which NDC is aware. 
 NDC has demonstrated experience over many years in working with the press and media 

on local election system issues. 
 NDC possesses fully up-to-date and highly effective geographic retrieval systems with 

applications specifically designed for districting and redistricting. 
 Neither the Justice Department nor any Court has ever rejected any local government 

districting or redistricting plan submitted by NDC. 

It should be clear that NDC has all of the resources of experience, technical expertise, and 
legal/political know-how to assist the District in its current effort. NDC looks forward to 
the opportunity to work with the District on this project. 

Proposal Acceptance 

The terms of this proposal are available for 45 calendar days from its delivery to you. In 
most situations, NDC is open to extending that period of time to meet any particular needs 
of your jurisdiction. 

NDC prides ourselves on tailoring each project to the needs and goals of each individual 
client. NDC is open to any feedback, concerns, requests, or changes regarding this proposal. 
If, however, it is acceptable in its current form, then NDC welcomes the opportunity to 
begin work as soon as possible.  

If your jurisdiction has specific contract and/or letter of agreement language you prefer to 
use, please provide it and ignore the signature block below. If you prefer, simply sign two 
copies of this proposal in the signature block below and return them to NDC. Once signed 
by NDC, one copy will be returned to you. Thank you. 

For National Demographics Corporation For Fallbrook Regional Health District 

    
Douglas Johnson, President   

    
Date  Date 

Page 75 of 121



Douglas Mark Johnson 
 

P.O. Box 5271 mobile: (310) 200-2058 
Glendale, CA 91221 office: (909) 624-1442 
djohnson@NDCresearch.com fax: (818) 254-1221 

   

Employment 
President, National Demographics Corporation, 2006 – present. 
Senior Analyst, National Demographics Corporation, 2001 – 2006. 
Fellow, Rose Institute of State and Local Government, 2001 – present. 
Project Manager and Senior Manager at three internet startup companies, 1999 - 2001. 
U.S. Representative Stephen Horn, Legislative Director and System Manager. 1993 – 1997. 
Coro Foundation, Fellowship in Public Affairs. 1992 – 1993. 
Rose Institute for State and Local Government, Student Manager. 1989 – 1992. 

Education 
Claremont Graduate University, Ph.D. in Political Science, 2015. Dissertation: “Independent 

Redistricting Commissions: Hopes and Lessons Learned.” 
UCLA Anderson Graduate School of Management, MBA, 1999. 
Claremont McKenna College, BA in Government (Political Science), 1992.  

Academic Honors 
Graduated Cum Laude from Claremont McKenna College. 
Phi Beta Kappa. Philip Roland Prize for Excellence in Public Policy. 

Publications and Articles 
Christian Science Monitor “Let the public help draw voting districts,” October 25, 2013. 
New York Times, "The Case for Open Primaries," February 19, 2009.  
Los Angeles Times Opinion Articles: 
 “A neighbor’s help on redistricting” June 24, 2007.  

“A Trojan horse primary for the GOP” February 25, 2007.  
“Where a porn palace stood” (article on redevelopment), July 30, 2006. 

Fresno Bee Opinion Article: “The Poison Handshake” June 15, 2004. 
Redistricting in America. Rose Institute of State and Local Government, 2010. 
Restoring the Competitive Edge: California's Need for Redistricting Reform and the Likely 

Impact of Proposition 77. Rose Institute of State and Local Government, 2005. 
"Competitive Districts in California" Rose Institute of State and Local Government, 2005. 
Latinos and Redistricting: “Californios For Fair Representation” and California Redistricting in 

the 1980s. Rose Institute of State and Local Government, 1991. 

Speaker or Panelist 
California School Board Association Annual Education Conference panelist: “The California 

Voting Rights Act: What Board Members Must Know.” December 4, 2015. 
Associated Cities of California – Orange County, Keynote Speaker, Newly Elected Officials’ 

Reception and Dinner, “The California Voting Rights Act,” January 29, 2015. 
California League of Cities, City Manager Department, 2015 Department Meeting: “Opportunity to 

Engage Residents: The California Voting Rights Act.” January 29, 2015. 
California League of Cities, City Clerk Department, 2014 Annual Meeting: “Whose Line Is It 

Anyway: Making the transition from at-large to by-district elections.” September 3, 2014. 
National Conference of State Legislatures, Redistricting and Elections Standing Committee: 2007 

Spring Forum, "The Arizona Independent Redistricting Commissions' experiences with the 
first-ever independent redistricting." 

National Conference of State Legislatures, Redistricting and Elections Standing Committee:  2008 
Spring Forum, "Communities of Interest In Redistricting: A Practical Guide." 

Page 76 of 121



Douglas Mark Johnson 
 

National Conference of State Legislatures, Redistricting and Elections Standing Committee: 2009 
Fall Forum, "The Key to Successful Redistricting." 

National Conference of State Legislatures, Redistricting and Elections Standing Committee: 2010 
Spring Forum, "Communities of Interest in Redistricting: A key to drawing 2011 plans (and for 
their defense)." 

National Conference of State Legislatures, Redistricting and Elections Standing Committee: 2011 
Winter Forum, "Citizen Voting Age Data from a line-drawer's viewpoint." 

Luncheon Keynote Speaker, Santa Barbara's Channel Cities Club, "California's next experiment: 
independent, public redistricting," January 18, 2011. 

Annual Conference, Arizona League of Cities and Towns, Presenter at "Redistricting Law and the 
Voting Rights Act: What It Means for Your City or Town in 2011," August 25, 2010. 

Redistricting, The 2010 Census, and Your Budget, Sponsored by the Rose Institute of State and 
Local Government, California League of Cities, October 15, 2009. 

Arizona Election Law 2010 Continuing Legal Education Conference, "Communities of interest and 
technology in redistricting," sponsored by the Arizona State Bar Association, March 2010 

California's New Independent Redistricting Commission, sponsored by the Irvine Foundation and 
the California Redistricting Collaborative, December 15, 2009 

Tribal Association of Sovereign Indian Nations (TASIN) Legislative Day 2009, "The 2010 Census 
and 2011 Redistricting in California," December 2, 2009. 

California School Board Association, "Litigation Issues and the California Voting Rights Act," 
December 4, 2009. 

California Latino School Boards Association, "Introduction to the California Voting Rights Act," 
August 20, 2009. 

Building a National Reform Movement, Salt Lake City, Utah, 2006, conference on redistricting 
reform hosted by the League of Women Voters, Campaign Legal Center, and The Council for 
Excellence in Government 

Texas Tech University, “A Symposium on Redistricting,” May, 2006 
California League of Cities, "Introduction to the California Voting Rights Act." 
Voices of Reform, a project of the Commonwealth Club of San Francisco: multiple forums on 

redistricting and / or term limits, 2006 – 2007 
Classroom speaker at Pepperdine University, the University of La Verne, Pomona College and 

Claremont McKenna College 
 

Page 77 of 121



Justin Mark Levitt 
 

P.O. Box 5271 mobile: (480) 390-7480 
Glendale, CA 91221 office: (818) 254-1221 
jlevitt@NDCresearch.com fax: (818) 254-1221 

   

Employment 
Vice-President, National Demographics Corporation, 2012 – present. 
Senior Analyst, National Demographics Corporation, 2003 – 2011. 
Instructor in Political Science, University of California, San Diego, 2012 – present.  
Graduate Research Fellow, Center for US-Mexico Studies, 2010 – present.  
Graduate Research Fellow, University of California, San Diego, 2008 – 2010 and 2013 – 2014. 
Jesse M. Unruh California Assembly Fellow. 2006 – 2007. 
Rose Institute for State and Local Government, Student Manager. 2005 – 2006. 

Education 
University of California, San Diego, Ph.D. Political Science, 2016. Dissertation title: “The Impact 

of Geographic Patterns on Tradeoffs in Redistricting.” 
Claremont McKenna College, BA in Philosophy, Politics and Economics (PPE), 2006.  

Academic Honors 
California Studies Fellow, University of California, San Diego, 2007 – 2009  
Graduated Cum Laude from Claremont McKenna College. 

Publications and Conference Presentations 
Settle, Jamie, Robert Bond, and Justin Levitt.  2011.  “The Social Origins of Adult Political 
Behavior.”  American Politics Research: 39 (2).  239-263 
 
Miller, Kenneth and Justin Levitt.  2007.  “The San Joaquin Valley.”  In The New Political 
Geography of California.  Eds. Frederick Douzet, Thad Kousser, and Kenneth Miller.  Berkeley: 
Institute of Government Studies. 
 
 “The Political Geography of Tradeoffs in Redistricting” Paper presented at the State Politics and 
Policy Conference, Iowa City, IA, 2013 
 
Getting What You Want: A Bargaining Approach to Fair Division in Redistricting.  Paper presented at the 
“Challenging Urban Borders : the geopolitics of immigration and segregation” workshop, 
Berkeley, CA, 2013 and the State Politics and Policy Conference, Houston, TX, 2012 
 
“An Atlas of Public Health in Mexico” (with Alberto Diaz Cayeros).  Paper presented at the 
Hewlett Foundation Conference on Public Health, Mexico City, DF. 2012 
 
“Remoteness and the Territoriality of Public Health” (with Alberto Diaz Cayeros). 
Paper presented at the American Political Science Association conference, Seattle, WA.  2011 

“Initiatives as revealed preferences” 
Paper presented at the American Political Science Association conference, Seattle, WA.  2011 

“No Se Puede: Latino Political Incorporation in Phoenix.”.  Paper Presented at the New Political 
Geography of California conference, Berkeley, CA., 2009 
 

Page 78 of 121



Justin Mark Levitt 
 

 “Political Change in the Central Valley”.  Paper Presented at the Western Political Science 
Association conference, Las Vegas, NV.,2007 

Working Papers  
Hill, Seth, Thad Kousser, Alex Hughes, and Justin Levitt.  ND.  “How Competitiveness Shapes 
Infrequent Primary Voters Response to Receiving a GOTV Mailer.” 
 
Diaz-Cayeros, Alberto and Justin Levitt.  ND. “Remoteness and the Territoriality of Public Health.”  
 
Levitt, Justin.  ND. “Getting What You Want: A Bargaining Approach to Fair Division in Commission-
led Redistricting.” 
 

Teaching Experience 
California State University, Long Beach, Department of Political Science 
Adjunct Professor—POSC 327 (Urban Politics) Spring 2016-Present 
Adjunct Professor—POSC 229 (Cases in Policy Analysis) Present 
Adjunct Professor—POSC 412 (Law and Social Change) Spring 2016-Present 
Adjunct Professor—POSC 399 (California Politics Short Course) Present 
 
University of California, San Diego, Department of Political Science 
Co-Instructor—UPS 170 (Regional Governance Reconsidered) Spring 2015 
Instructor—Poli 100A (The Presidency) Fall 2014 
Instructor—Poli 160AA (Introduction to Public Policy Analysis) Fall 2013 
Instructor—Poli 10 (Introduction to American Politics) Summer 2013 

 
 

Page 79 of 121



Shalice M. Tilton, M.M.C. 
 

mobile: (714) 308-0726 stilton@NDCresearch.com office: (818) 254-1221 
   

Employment 
Senior Consultant, National Demographics Corporation, 2017 – present. 
City Clerk, Department Director, Executive Manager, City of Buena Park, CA, 1998 – 2017 
Deputy City Clerk, Division Manager, City of Buena Park, CA, 1994 – 1997  

Education 
Master of Public Administration, National University 
Bachelor of Science, Business Administration, Grand Canyon University 
Master Municipal Clerk, International Institute of Municipal Clerks 
Certified Municipal Clerk, International Institute of Municipal Clerks 

Professional Affiliations 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks 
League of California Cities, City Clerks Department 
City Clerks Association of California 
Southern California City Clerks Association 
Buena Park Area Business Council 
Historical Society of Buena Park 

External Highlights 
Contributor, 2014 League of California Cities Western Cities publication, “The Balanced Triangle 

and the City Clerk’s Role in Local Government.” 
Adjunct Professor, 2014-17 UC Irvine Extension and Association of California Cities – Public 

Policy Making Academy “Public Governance – City Government.” 
Guest Speaker, 2012 Association of California Cities Orange County, Government Leadership 

Summit,  “Navigating Public Policy” 
Guest Speaker, 2008 League of California Cities New Law and Election Seminar, “The Rewards 

of Being a Fearless City Clerk” 
Co-Author, “International Institute of Municipal Clerks Code of Ethics Rules of Procedure,” 

adopted by IIMC, July 2008 
Guest Speaker, 2008 League of California Cities Mayor and City Council Executive Forum, 

“Technology and Electronic Media and the Public Records Act” 
Educator and Trainer, 2007-2008 Master Municipal Clerk Academy of the International Institute 

of Municipal Clerks, “Understanding the Complex Legalities of the Clerk Domain”  
Editor/Contributor, 2008 League of California Cities publication, “The People’s Business:  A 

Guide to the California Public Records Act”  
2007 Integrity of Profession Award, Soroptimist International of Buena Park. 
“Shalice Tilton Day,” September 12, 2006, Buena Park City Council Proclamation 
2003 President’s Award, “Paying it Forward to Youth,” City Clerks Association of California  
2002 President’s Ensemble Award, City Clerks Association of California 
Founder, Program Chair, and Trainer, City Clerks Association of California, "Nuts & Bolts" 

Education Institute (100+ participants annually), 1997-2004 
Mentor for Continuing Education for Public Officials, provided educational and professional 

guidance to entry-level City Clerks, 2002-2004 
Guest Speaker, 2003 League of California Cities New Law and Election Seminar, “The Art of 

Preparing Minutes and Crafting Agenda Reports” 
Nominated, 1999 International Institute of Municipal Clerks Technology Award of Excellence 
Guest Speaker, City Clerks Association of California 1998 Annual Conference, "Charting Your 

Course - The Role, Responsibilities, and Duties of the City Clerk" 
Guest Speaker, Government, Business & Education Tech Expo '97, "Records Management" 

Page 80 of 121



Robert H. McEntire 
 

P.O. Box 5271 mobile: (323) 806-6788 
Glendale, CA 91221 office: (818) 254-1221 
rmcentire@NDCresearch.com fax: (818) 254-1221  

Employment 
Senior Consultant, National Demographics Corporation, 2017 – present. 
Assistant Superintendent Business/CBO, Covina-Valley Unified School District, 2016 – present. 
Chief Business & Financial Officer, Glendale Unified School District, 2014 – 2016.  
Chief Business Officer, Garvey School District, 2012 – 2014.  
Chief Financial Officer, Hollywood & Broadway Entertainment Partners, Los Angeles, New York, 

Boston, Singapore, 2005 – 2012. 
Education 

University of Southern California, Los Angeles, CA, Doctor of Education: K-12 Leadership in  
Urban School Settings (Candidate), 2019. Dissertation title: “The Influence of Globalization, 
Leadership, and Science Fairs on the Female Acquisition of 21st-Century Skills and Their College-
Career Pursuit of Science, Technology, Engineering, and Mathematics Majors and Careers as Seen at 
Our Lady’s School in Ireland.” 

Thunderbird School of Global Management, Glendale, AZ, MBA in Global Business  
Management, 2008. 

University of Southern California, Los Angeles, CA, Bachelor of Science in Business  
Administration, 2003. 

Recent Districting Engagements (partial list) 
CITIES SCHOOL DISTRICTS 
City of Barstow Antelope Valley College 
City of Dana Point Barstow Unified School District 
City of Duarte Cajon Valley Unified School District  
City of Norco El Monte Union High School District 
City of Oxnard Inglewood Unified School District 
City of Placentia Irvine Unified School District 
City of Santee  
City of South Pasadena  
Town of Yucca Valley  

Publications and Conference Presentations 
   California Association of School Business Officials (CASBO):  
    Annual Conference, April 2018 

 Panelist: Keeping Your Board Onboard: Effective Strategies for Business Leaders When Working with 
their Elected Officials – 100 Attendees 

    Chief Business Officer Symposium, November 2017 
 Presider – General Session – 600 Attendees 
 Panelist: The Budget and LCAP Integration at the District Level 

      Annual Conference, April 2016 
 Presenter: Maximizing and Linking Your Bond, Capital Facilities and M&O Programs – 150 Attendees 
 Presenter: Linking Your Bond, Maintenance and Operations Programs: Best Practices to Stretch 

Limited Resources – 100 Attendees 
 Presenter: Evolution of the role of the Chief Business Officer – 300 Attendees 

       Chief Business Officer Symposium, November 2015 
 Presider – General Session – 600 Attendees 

Teaching Experience 
Association of California School Administrators (ACSA) 

 Lecturer: Personnel Administrators Academy, November 2017 

Page 81 of 121



 

  National Demographics Corporation 
Clients moved or moving from at-large to by-district elections 

   

 

Counties 
San Mateo  
 
Cities 
Apple Valley 
Anaheim 
Banning 
Bellflower 
Buckeye 
Buena Park 
Ceres 
Chino 
Compton 
Corona 
Eastvale 
El Cajon 
Escondido 
Firebaugh 
Fowler 
Fullerton 

Glendale (AZ) 
Hemet 
Hesperia 
Highland 
King City 
Los Banos 
Madera 
Menifee 
Merced 
Mesa (AZ) 
Modesto 
Moreno Valley 
Palmdale 
Parlier 
Pasadena 
Peoria (AZ) 

Rancho Cucamonga 
Redlands 
Reedley 
Riverbank 
San Marcos 
Sanger 
Santa Barbara 
Surprise 
Tulare 
Turlock 
Victorville 
Visalia 
Whittier 
Wildomar 
Yucaipa 

  
Community College Districts 
Antelope Valley 
Cuesta  
Glendale 
Grossmont-Cuyamaca  
MiraCosta 

Rancho Santiago  
San Diego  
Santa Clarita 
Sierra  
Southwestern  

 
Water, Irrigation & Conservation Districts  Alta Irrigation  
Fresno Irrigation 
Imperial Irrigation District 
Mojave Water Agency 
Palmdale Water  
Rowland Water  

San Bernardino Water  
Santa Clara Valley Water 
Upper San Gabriel Valley 
Western Municipal Water  
Winton Water 

 
Other Special Districts 
Jurupa Community Service District 
Kings River Conservation District 

Tulare Health Care District 
Westside Community Health Care District 

 
School Districts 
Alpine Union 
Alpine Union Elementary 
Alta Vista 
Bakersfield City Schools 
Bonsall Union 

Elementary 
Borrego Springs Unified 
Buena Park Elementary 

Burton Elementary 
Cajon Valley Union 
Cajon Valley Union 

Elementary 
Calistoga Joint Unified 
Capistrano Unified 
Capistrano Unified 

School District 

Cardiff Elementary 
Carlsbad Unified 
Caruthers 
Cayucas 
Centinela Valley 
Central Unified 
Centralia Elementary 
Chula Vista Elementary 

Page 82 of 121



 

  National Demographics Corporation 
Clients moved or moving from at-large to by-district elections 

   

 

Clay Elementary 
Clovis Unified 
Coalinga-Huron 
Coronado Unified 
Dehesa Elementary 
Del Mar Union 

Elementary 
Dinuba Unified 
Eastern Sierra Unified 
Eastside Union 

Elementary 
Encinitas Union 

Elementary 
Escalon Unified 
Escondido Union 

Elementary 
Escondido Union High 
Exeter Elementary 
Exeter High 
Exeter Unified 
Fallbrook Union 

Elementary 
Fallbrook Union High 
Firebaugh-Las Deltas 

Unified 
Fresno Unified 
Fullerton Union High 
Glendale Unified 
Greenfield 
Grossmont Union High 
Hughson Unified 
Jamul-Dulzura Union 

Elementary 
Julian Union Elementary 
Julian Union High 
Kerman Unified 
Kern High 
Keyes Union 
Kings Canyon Unified 

School District  

Kings River 
Kingsburg Elementary 
Kingsburg High 
La Mesa-Spring Valley 
Lake Elsinore 
Lakeside Union 

Elementary 
Lakeside Union School 
Lancaster Elementary 
Lawndale Elementary 
Lemon Grove 

Elementary 
Lindsay Unified 
Lucia Mar 
Madera Unified 
Magnolia Elementary 
Merced Union High 

School District  
Modesto City Schools 
Modoc Unified 
Monson Soltana 
Morgan Hill Unified 
Mountain Empire 

Unified 
Napa Valley Unified 
National Elementary 
Newhall Elementary 
Newman Crows Landing 
Oak Grove Elementary 

School District 
Oceanside Unified 
Pacific Union 
Panama Buena Vista 
Pasadena Unified 
Pixley Union 
Pleasant View 
Pomona Unified 
Porterville 
Poway Unified 
Ramona Unified 

Rancho Santa Fe 
Elementary 

Richland School District 
Riverbank 
Riverdale Unified 
Salida Union 
San Dieguito Union High 
San Marcos Unified 
San Pasqual Union 

Elementary 
San Ysidro Elementary 
Santee Elementary 
Selma Unified 
Solana Beach Elementary 
South Bay Union 
Spencer Valley 

Elementary 
Strathmore Elementary 
Sundale Union 

Elementary 
Sweetwater Union High 
Tulare City Elementary 
Tulare City High 
Tulelake 
Turlock Unified 
Twin Rivers Unified 
Vallecitos Elementary 
Valley Center Pauma 

Unified 
Visalia Unified 
Vista Unified 
Walnut Valley Water 
Warner Unified 
Washington Union 
Waterford Union 
Whittier Union High 
Woodlake Union 

 

 

Page 83 of 121



Page 84 of 121



Page 85 of 121



Page 86 of 121



Page 87 of 121



Page 88 of 121



Page 89 of 121



Page 90 of 121



Page 91 of 121



Page 92 of 121



Page 93 of 121



Page 94 of 121



Page 95 of 121



Page 96 of 121



Page 97 of 121



Page 98 of 121



Page 99 of 121



Page 100 of 121



Page 101 of 121



Page 102 of 121



Page 103 of 121



Page 104 of 121



Page 105 of 121



Page 106 of 121



FIRST AMENDMENT TO  

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This First Amendment to Professional Services Agreement dated  ________, 2017, 

(Agreement) is entered into by and between Fallbrook Regional Health District, f/k/a 

Fallbrook Healthcare District (District), a public agency organized and operating pursuant 

to California Health and Safety Code sections 32000, et. seq., and Wendy Lyon, as 

follows, 

R-E-C-I-T-A-L-S 

 

 1. The District continues to require the professional services of a bookkeeper 

to assist in monitoring and tracking of its financial transaction, and to create and maintain 

monthly financial reports for the District 

 

 2. Consultant desires to continue to provide professional bookkeeping services 

to the District as noted in and in accordance with the preceding recital. 

 

C-O-V-E-N-A-N-T-S 

 

The Professional Services Agreement between District and Consultant is hereby 

amended as follows: 

 

 Section 2.1 Compensation for Services,  is amended to read “For the full and 

satisfactory performance of the Services, District shall compensate Consultant on an 

hourly basis at a rate of $45.00 per hour, to be billed in increments of one-quarter hour.  

District anticipates, but does not guarantee an average monthly need of eighteen to twenty 

four (18-24) hours per month to perform the Services.” 

 

 Section 3 TERM is amended to read as follows:  “The term of this Agreement shall run 

from the date this Agreement is fully executed until January 31, 2020, subject to District’s 

right to sooner terminate or suspend this Agreement as provided in this Agreement.”   

 

In all other respects, the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

This Agreement is entered into in San Diego County, California. 

 

Fallbrook Regional Health District  Consultant   

 

 

By: _____________________        By: ___________________________ 

       Bobbi Palmer,    Wendy Lyon 

       Executive Director   

 

 

Dated: ___________________        Dated: _____________________  

 

 

Page 107 of 121



 

SCHEDULE A –Services to be Provided 

 

 

1. Conduct monthly reconciliation of accounts including bank accounts. 

 

2. Prepare and issue financial statements. 

 

3. Provide needed financial information to accountant. 

 

4. Maintain an orderly accounting/filing system. 

 

5. Calculate and issue financial analysis of the financial statements. 

 

6. Maintain the chart of accounts, and ensure the proper posting of transactions 

to apppropriate accounting journals and general ledger. 

 

7. Track and calculate variances between actual and budget, and report 

significant issues to the Executive Director. 

 

8. Assist in preparation of, and maintain the annual budget. 

 

9. Comply with all applicable local, state and federal government reporting 

requirements. 

 

10. Such “Additional Services” as may be discussed and agreed upon between 

Consultant and District on an as-needed basis. 

 

 

Page 108 of 121



Page 109 of 121



Page 110 of 121



Page 111 of 121



Page 112 of 121



Page 113 of 121



Page 114 of 121



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 115 of 121



Page 116 of 121



Page 117 of 121



Page 118 of 121



Page 119 of 121



Page 120 of 121



RESOLUTION NO. 424 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH 

DISTRICT THE INTENTION TO TRANSITION FROM AT-LARGE TO DISTRICT-BASED 

ELECTIONS PURSUANT TO ELECTIONS CODE 10010(e)(J)(A) 

WHEREAS, FALLBROOK REGIONAL HEALTH DISTRICT ("FRHD") is a California health 

care district duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of California, particularly the Local 

Health Care District Law, constituting Division 23 of the Health and Safety Code of the State of California, 

and more particularly, Health and Safety Code §§ 32000 et seq. (the "Law"); and, 

WHEREAS, the governing board (“Board”) held its annual organizational meeting in December, 

2018, to provide for the election of Board officers for 2019, and to fix the date and time of the regular 

board meeting; and, 

WHEREAS, the majority of the Board has decided to change the date and time of the regular board 

meeting. 

NOW, THEREFORE, this Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health District does hereby 

resolve: 

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

Section 2. The Board has decided that ________________________________ shall serve as 

Board President, ____________________________________________ shall serve as Vice President and 

_________________________________________________ shall serve as Secretary, effective 

immediately and continuing until the end of the term of office, ending December 6, 2019 

Section 3. The Board hereby changes the effective day and time of the monthly Regular board 

meeting to ________________________, at ____:____pm, at the Wellness Center, 1636 Mission Rd. 

Fallbrook, CA 92028. 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Fallbrook Regional Health 

District at a Regular meeting held this 12th day of December, 2018, by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 

NOES:  

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:

______________________________, President 

Board of Directors

ATTEST: 

__________________________, Vice-President 

Board of Directors 

Page 121 of 121




